2000

# Janet Peterson v. Sunrider Corporation, dba sunrider International, and Tei Fu Chen : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## **STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION**

The Supreme Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Utah Code Annotated §78-2-2(3)(j).

## **STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW**

**I. Whether the trial court erred in finding that the 1976 Agreement is illegal?**

### **Standard of Appellate Review**

Whether the 1976 agreement is illegal is a question of law, which is reviewed for correctness. Sackler v. Savin, 897 P.2d 1217, 1220 (Utah 1995).

### **Issue Preserved in Trial Court**

This issue was preserved in the trial court at R. 297, 1030, 1427-28<sup>1</sup>.

**II. Whether the trial court erred in retroactively applying the Utah Pyramid Scheme Act, Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq., to the 1976 Agreement?**

### **Standard of Appellate Review**

The retroactive application of statutes is a question of law, which is reviewed for correctness. Olsen v. Samuel McIntyre Investment Co., 956 P.2d 257, 259 (Utah 1998).

---

<sup>1</sup>A transcript of the May 18, 1998 Oral Arguments before the Honorable Howard H. Maetani, from which the Order being appealed resulted, is not a part of the appellate record because the District Court personnel cannot locate the videotape from that date.

Issue Preserved in Trial Court

This issue was preserved in the trial court at R. 297, 1030, 1427-28.

**III. Whether the trial court's application of the Utah Pyramid Scheme Act, Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq., impairs the Plaintiff's/Appellant's contractual rights under the July 31, 1976 agreement in violation of the contract clauses in Article I, §10 of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, §18 of the Utah Constitution?**

Standard of Appellate Review

Whether the statute impairs the Plaintiff's/Appellant's contract rights in violation of the Contract Clause is a question of law, which is reviewed for correctness. Trail Mountain Coal v. Division of Lands, 921 P.2d 1365, 1369-71 (Utah 1996).

Issue Preserved in Trial Court

This issue was preserved in the trial court at R. 297, 1030, 1427-28.

**IV. Whether the trial court erred in entering the Order denying Plaintiff's/Appellant's motion for summary judgment on her breach of contract cause of action?**

Standard of Appellate Review

Appellate review for a summary judgment is one of correctness, with no deference afforded to the trial court. Winegar v. Froerer Corp., 813 P.2d 104, 107 (Utah 1991).



### Issue Preserved in Trial Court

This issue was preserved in the trial court at R. 194-303, 987-1051.

### **CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND STATUTE INVOLVED**

Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4):

“Pyramid scheme” means any sales device or plan under which a person gives consideration to another person in exchange for compensation or the right to receive compensation which is derived primarily from the introduction of other persons into the sales device or plan rather than from the sale of goods, services, or other property.

U.S. Constitution Article I, §10(1):

No State shall enter into any Treaty, Alliance, or Confederation; grant Letters of Marque and Reprisal; coin Money; emit Bills of Credit; make any Thing but gold and silver Coin a Tender in Payment of Debts; pass any Bill of Attainder, ex post facto Law, or Law impairing the Obligation of Contracts.

Utah Constitution Article I, §18:

No bill of attainder, ex post facto law, or law impairing the obligation of contracts shall be passed.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### Nature of the Case

This matter comes before this Court pursuant to Janet Peterson's appeal of the Order signed by the Honorable James R. Taylor, Fourth Judicial District Court Judge, on March 30, 2000, and entered on March 31, 2000.

This case arises out of a claim by Mrs. Peterson against Sunrider Corporation, d.b.a. Sunrider International (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Sunrider"), for breach of contract and the covenants of good faith and fair dealing, and against Tei Fu Chen, the current Chairman of Sunrider's Board of Directors, for tortious interference with a contract.

### Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below

Mrs. Peterson first filed suit in this matter on March 19, 1996. (R. 1-9). Sunrider and Tei Fu Chen (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Defendants") filed their answer on May 3, 1996. (R. 13-19). Mrs. Peterson subsequently filed an Amended Complaint on September 11, 1996. (R. 42-53). The Defendants filed an Answer To Amended Complaint And Counterclaim on October 8, 1996. (R. 54-63). Mrs. Peterson filed an Answer To Counterclaim on October 9, 1996. (R. 64-66).

On January 15, 1998, Mrs. Peterson file a Motion For Partial Summary Judgment on her breach of contract cause of action. (R. 194-303). On April 1, 1998, Defendants

filed a Motion To Dismiss Mrs. Peterson's tortious interference with contract cause of action, and a Motion For Summary Judgment on each of Mrs. Peterson's causes of action. (R. 1166-67, 1176-1359).

On May 18, 1998, the Honorable Howard H. Maetani held consolidated oral arguments on Mrs. Peterson's motion for partial summary judgment, and the Defendants' motions to dismiss and for summary judgment, as well as other nondispositive motions filed by both Mrs. Peterson and the Defendants. (R. 1472). On June 15, 1998, Judge Maetani issued a Memorandum Decision granting Defendants' motions to dismiss and for summary judgment, and denying Mrs. Peterson's motion for partial summary judgment. (R. 1575-85). On October 6, 1998, Judge Maetani signed and entered an Order memorializing his ruling in the June 15, 1998 Memorandum Decision. (R. 1613-16).

On October 14, 1998, Mrs. Peterson filed a Notice Of Appeal with the trial court. (R. 1620-21). On December 15, 1998, Chief Justice Howe signed an Order dismissing Mrs. Peterson's appeal because the Order appealed from was ruled to be a nonfinal judgment. (R. 1640). On January 21, 2000, the Supreme Court issued a Remittur to the trial court. (R. 1641).

On March 31, 2000, the Honorable James R. Taylor entered an Order adopting the findings and conclusions of fact and law in Judge Maetani's June 15, 1998 Memorandum Decision, granting Defendants' motions to dismiss and for summary judgment, and denying Mrs. Peterson's motion for partial summary judgment. (R. 1668-69). On April

19, 2000, Mrs. Peterson filed a Notice Of Appeal with the trial court. (R. 1690-91).

### Statement of Facts

1. NaturaLife International, Inc. was a Utah Corporation which was incorporated on May 27, 1976. (R. 303, 62 and 1585).

2. Tei Fu Chen acquired NaturaLife International, Inc. by entering into a Stock Sale Agreement on September 24, 1982, with the sole stockholders of NaturaLife International, Inc., Kenneth A. Murdock and George T. Murdock, Jr. (R. 302, 61 and 1585).

3. NaturaLife International, Inc.'s name was changed to Sunrider Corporation. (R. 302, 255 and 1585). NaturaLife and Sunrider are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Company."

4. Sunrider International is a d.b.a. of Sunrider Corporation. (R. 302, 62 and 1584).

5. The Company markets its products through a multi-level marketing sales program. (R. 302, 60 and 1584).

6. Lloyd D. Peterson, the now deceased spouse of Janet Peterson entered into an agreement effective July 31, 1976 with the Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") which made Sharon and John Farnsworth (husband and wife) and their sponsored organization (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Farnsworth

Organization”) first level distributors of the Company’s products to Janet Peterson, as though the Farnsworth Organization had been originally sponsored by Janet Peterson. (R. 301-02, 287, 250-52 and 1584).

7. Pursuant to the Agreement, Mrs. Peterson remains a director of the Company for the purpose of receiving override commissions from directors occurring in her organization regardless of her personal purchase volume (PV) level. (R. 301, 287, 1050, 1006, and 1014-19).

8. The Company currently calls the override commissions referred to in the Agreement a “Leadership Development Bonus.” (R. 301 and 244).

9. The Agreement waived each and every requirement that existed at the time the Agreement was entered into for Mrs. Peterson being a director with the Company for the purpose of receiving override commission/Leadership Development Bonus from directors occurring in her organization. (R. 301, 1050, 1006, and 1014-19).

10. The override commission/Leadership Development Bonus pays a director of the Company a monthly amount that is a percentage of product sales made by the director’s organization. (R. 300 and 1013).

11. The scheduled rate for calculating the override commission/Leadership Development Bonus is contained in the Company’s Policy Guides or Business Guides. (R. 1013).

12. The reason the Company agreed to enter into the Agreement in the first place was because if the company did not pay the override commission/Leadership Development Bonus to Mrs. Peterson as called for in the Agreement, the monies would stay with the Company. (R. 1012).

13. There are 17 different levels of achievement under which the Company's distributors may earn various forms of compensation. (R. 419, 755 and 757).

14. Mrs. Peterson received her monthly override commission/Leadership Development Bonus payment from the Company, from the time the Agreement was executed until December of 1994. (R. 299, 224 and 242-43).

15. By December of 1994, Mrs. Peterson's monthly override commission/Leadership Development Bonus averaged approximately \$3,500.00 per month. (R. 299 and 249).

16. Pursuant to a decision made by the Company's current President, Oi-Lin Chen, the Company refuses to pay any sums to Mrs. Peterson. (R. 299, 238 and 1584).

17. Mrs. Peterson has not signed any writing which purports to modify the Agreement, and there has been no conversation between Mrs. Peterson and anyone from the Company which purported to modify the Agreement. (R. 299 and 239-40).

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court erred in entering the March 31, 2000 Order granting the Defendants' motion for summary judgment. The trial court ruled that the Agreement was for an illegal purpose, and based its ruling on the definition of a "pyramid scheme" found in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) which was adopted in 1983. The trial court wrongly interpreted the definition of a "pyramid scheme" in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) against the facts of this case.

Even if the trial court correctly interpreted the definition of a "pyramid scheme" in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) against the facts of this case, the trial court erred in retroactively applying a statute that was enacted in 1983 to the Agreement which was entered into in 1976.

Even if the trial correctly interpreted the definition of a "pyramid scheme" in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) against the facts of this case, and did not wrongfully apply Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) retroactively in this case, the trial court wrongfully impaired Mrs. Peterson's contract rights that were in existence immediately prior to enactment of Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) in violation of the contract clause in both Article I, §10 of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, §18 of the Utah Constitution.

Finally, the trial court erred in entering the March 31, 2000 Order denying Mrs. Peterson's motion for partial summary judgment on her breach of contract cause of action

because there exists no genuine issue as to any material fact and she is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law on that issue.

### **ARGUMENT**

#### **I. The trial court erred in finding that the 1976 Agreement is illegal.**

In ruling on Mrs. Peterson's motion for partial summary judgment, and the Defendants' motion for summary judgment, the trial court in its June 15, 1998 Memorandum Decision ruled that the Agreement is for an illegal purpose, and summarily dismissed Mrs. Peterson's breach of contract claim against the Defendants. In doing so, the trial court based its ruling on the definition of a pyramid sales scheme found in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) which was adopted in 1983. Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) provides:

"Pyramid scheme" means any sales device or plan under which a person gives consideration to another person in exchange for compensation or the right to receive compensation which is derived primarily from the introduction of other persons into the sales device or plan rather than from the sale of goods, services, or other property.

The trial court has wrongly interpreted the definition of a "pyramid scheme" in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) against the facts of this case.

To find that the Agreement violates Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4), the evidence would have to show that the override commission/Leadership Development Bonus called



for by the Agreement is derived primarily from the introduction of other persons into the Company rather than from the sale of goods. No such evidence exists.

The evidence shows that Mrs. Peterson's override commission/Leadership Development Bonus was based solely upon the product sales made by the Farnsworth Organization, and had nothing to do with, and was not contingent upon, the introduction of new persons into the Farnsworth Organization. In fact, the evidence is silent as to whether or not any person in the Farnsworth Organization was introduced or sponsored into the Farnsworth Organization subsequent to the Agreement being entered into in 1976.

Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1. et seq., is a part of Utah's Criminal Code, and was enacted by the legislature to guard against programs that create compensation derived primarily from introducing others into the sales plan. Virginia has enacted a similar statute, as have many states. The Virginia Supreme Court made clear the legislative purpose of these types of statutes in its decision in the case of Bell v. Commonwealth, 236 Va. 298, 303, 374 S.E.2d 13, 16 (1988) where it stated:

As the number in the chain of participants expands and the market for new recruits declines, the law of diminishing returns begins to operate against the interests of those who become participants late in the process. Once the market is exhausted, no participant...has an opportunity to receive compensation...in return for inducing other persons to become participants in the program.

The override commission/Leadership Development Bonus called for in the Agreement does not operate against the interest of the persons in the Farnsworth Organization because

any override commission/Leadership Development Bonus not paid to Mrs. Peterson stays in the Company. Additionally, there are 17 different levels of achievement under which the persons in the Farnsworth Organization may earn various forms of compensation, which shows that each person within the Farnsworth Organization has the opportunity to receive compensation, despite when that person joins the organization. There is no evidence that other persons in the Farnsworth Organization complained about the Agreement, or were adversely affected by the Agreement.

The evidence in this case does not support the trial court's ruling that the Agreement is for an illegal purpose. The trial court erred in finding that the 1976 Agreement was illegal, and should be reversed.

**II. The trial Court erred in retroactively applying the Utah Pyramid Scheme Act, Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq., to the 1976 Agreement.**

Utah Code Ann. §68-3-3 provides, "No part of these revised statutes is retroactive, unless expressly so declared." This statutory provision is merely a statement of well settled rules of statutory construction. Farrel v. Pingree, 5 Utah 443, 448, 16 P. 843, (1888).

In dismissing Mrs. Peterson's breach of contract claim against the Defendants, the trial court based its ruling on the definition of a pyramid sales scheme found in Utah Code

Ann. §76-6a-2(4). In doing so, the trial court wrongfully retroactively applied a statute that was enacted in 1983 to the Agreement which was entered into in 1976.

Even if this Court were to find that the trial court correctly interpreted the definition of a “pyramid scheme” in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) against the facts of this case, the legality of the Agreement must be determined by the law in force at the time of its execution. Cache County v. Property Tax Div. Of Utah State Tax Comm’n., 922 P.2d 758, 766 (Utah 1996).

Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4), or any similar statutory provision, did not exist at the time the Agreement was entered into. Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq. makes no express statement that the chapter is to have retroactive effect. As a result, the Agreement is legal and enforceable. The trial court’s finding that the Agreement is for an illegal purpose and void, is error and should be reversed.

**III. The trial court’s application of the Utah Pyramid Scheme Act, Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq., impairs the Plaintiff’s/Appellant’s contractual rights under the July 31, 1976 agreement in violation of the contract clauses in Article I, §10 of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, §18 of the Utah Constitution.**

The contract clause of both Article I, §10 of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, §18 of the Utah Constitution, prohibits the State of Utah from enacting any law that impairs

a person's contract rights. The prohibition contained in both the federal and state constitution protects contractual obligations in existence at the time the disputed legislation is enacted, and relates only to legislative action, not to judicial decisions. George v. Oren Ltd. & Assoc., 672 P.2d 732, 738 (Utah 1983).

In dismissing Mrs. Peterson's breach of contract claim against the Defendants, the trial court based its ruling on the definition of a pyramid sales scheme found in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4). In doing so, the trial court wrongfully applied a statute that was enacted in 1983, to impair Mrs. Peterson's contract rights that existed since the Agreement was entered into in 1976. The trial court's ruling violates both Article I, §10 of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, §18 of the Utah Constitution.

Over the years, courts have carved out an exception to the general prohibitions contained in the contract clause of federal and state constitutions. This exception was defined in this Court's opinion in George.

It is well settled that in the exercise of its police power, a state can enact regulations or laws reasonably necessary to secure the health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare of the community regardless of whether such laws or regulations affect contracts incidentally, directly or indirectly.

George, 672 P.2d at 737. A brief summary of Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq. is in order to show that such an exception is not applicable in the present case.

Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq. states any person who knowingly organizes, establishes, promotes, or administers a pyramid scheme is guilty of a third degree felony, and further provides that a criminal conviction under the chapter is prima facie evidence

of a violation of Utah Code Ann. §13-11-4, the Utah Consumer Practices Act. The Chapter also provides a civil remedy for persons who have become involved in an illegal pyramid scheme to recover the consideration paid by that person.

Even if Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-1 et seq. is a proper exercise by the state of its police power, there is no evidence to suggest that Mrs. Peterson's Agreement with the Company jeopardized the health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare of the community. Accordingly, even if this Court were to find that the trial court correctly interpreted the definition of a "pyramid scheme" in Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) against the facts of this case, and finds that the trial court did not wrongfully apply Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4) retroactively in this case, the trial court may not impair Mrs. Peterson's contract rights that were in existence immediately prior to enactment of Utah Code Ann. §76-6a-2(4). The trial court's summary dismissal of Mrs. Peterson's breach of contract claim against the Defendants, was error, and should be reversed.

**IV. The trial court erred in entering the Order denying  
Plaintiff's/Appellant's motion for summary judgment on her  
breach of contract cause of action?**

Ut R. Civ P. 56 provides that summary judgment "shall be rendered if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party

is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.” In the present case, Mrs. Peterson is entitled to summary judgment on her breach of contract cause of action.

The Agreement Is A Valid, Enforceable Contract.

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