2000

# Janet Peterson v. The Sunrider Corporation, dba Sunrider International, and Tei Fu Chen : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

### **Summary of Argument**

The trial court correctly determined that Plaintiff's interpretation of her contract is for an illegal purpose given her refusal to make any efforts to conduct retail sales or to train and develop her down-line. Because Plaintiff admitted that she was not conducting retail sales or acting as a sales leader by training and promoting her down-line, the Defendants were entitled to judgment as a matter of law on Plaintiff's breach of contract claim.

Plaintiff did not preserve for appeal her claims regarding the Utah and United States Constitutional prohibitions on the impairment of contracts. Similarly, she failed to preserve for appeal her arguments about an improper retroactive application of Utah's Anti-Pyramid Act.

This court can also affirm the dismissal of Plaintiff's claims because under traditional contract construction analysis, Plaintiff was in breach of her contract because the 1976 agreement only waived the personal purchase volume requirements for receiving overrides. By its express terms, the 1976 writing said nothing about waiving personal group purchase volume requirements, meeting minimal requirements for maintaining a distributorship, conducting retail sales, or meeting the definition of a sales leader.

In addition, because Plaintiff testified that Sunrider could and had modified the Business Guides periodically, and while aware of the new requirements she had accepted monthly payments, as a matter of law, Plaintiff assented to changes set forth in the Business Guides. Because she admitted she was not meeting the new requirements, Defendants were entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

The trial court did not err in denying Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. Defendants presented sufficient evidence suggesting the 1976 agreement had been modified including Plaintiff's testimony that Defendants could modify the Business Guides whenever things weren't quite right. Plaintiff's arguments regarding the statute of frauds are not well placed because the statute of frauds is applied literally. In any event, because 1976 writing did not contain all of the required terms, any modification would not have to meet the statute of frauds either. Plaintiff could not prove her damages without either admitting that the Business Guides did modify the 1976 agreement, or without the benefit of expert testimony. At the time she filed

her Motion for Summary Judgment, Plaintiff did not have an expert witness and the time for naming one had long since passed. It was only after this omission was pointed out in Defendants Memorandum in Opposition to Summary Judgment that Plaintiff sought leave to name an expert witness. Accordingly, the trial court properly concluded Plaintiff was not entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

### **Argument**

#### **I. Standard For Reviewing Summary Judgment**

Summary Judgment is proper when there are no disputes as to any material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Utah R. Civ. P. 56(c). Once the movant has set forth facts as to which the movant asserts no genuine issue exists, and which demonstrate a failure of proof, lack of legal merit, or otherwise show an entitlement to judgment, the non-moving party “must come forward with sufficient proof to support his or her claim, particularly when that party has had an opportunity to conduct discovery.” Jensen v. IHC Hospitals, Inc., 944 P.2d 327, 339 (Utah 1997) citing Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 322-23 (1986).

In order to come forward with sufficient facts, the non-moving party must specifically controvert the movant’s statement of facts, or those facts are deemed admitted. Utah R. Jud. Admin. 4-501. In other words, once faced with a summary judgment motion tending to demonstrate that the non-movant will not prevail, the non-movant must, on any particular claim, demonstrate the existence of facts in the record which would allow a finding in her favor on “the essential elements of his [or her] claim.” Thayne v. Beneficial Utah, Inc., 874 P.2d 120, 124 (Utah 1994).

In this case, Plaintiff failed to controvert the majority of the factual assertions contained in Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment. In many instances, although attempting to object to them, Plaintiff cited no contrary fact in the record and no well-taken objection. In other instances, Plaintiff attempted to controvert the facts by challenging their legal significance or with the legal conclusion that the 1976 agreement "waived each and every requirement" by citing to extrinsic evidence of intent that is inadmissible under the parol evidence rule. Finally, in many instances, the portions of the record cited by Plaintiff to controvert a fact simply did not support the fact she asserted it stood for. See R. 1460-1464.

**II. Plaintiff Failed to Preserve Issues II and III and is Therefore Not Entitled to Review of Those Issues.**

Plaintiff raises two issues in her brief-in-chief which were not preserved in the record below. Issue II is a claim that the trial court retroactively applied the Utah Pyramid Scheme Act. Issue III is a claim that the trial court's ruling violates contracts clauses of the Utah and United States Constitutions. The court will search in vain for any reference, however obscure, to either issue in the record.

It is fundamental that an issue must be preserved below in order for an examination of the issue by the appellate court. The Utah Court of Appeals has summarized the requirements for preservation:

To preserve a substantive issue for appeal, a party must first raise the issue before the trial court. A matter is sufficiently raised if it is submitted to the trial court, and the court is afforded an opportunity to rule on the issue. For a court to be afforded an opportunity to rule on the issue, several requirements must be met. First, the issue must be raised in a timely fashion. To preserve a substantive issue for appeal, a party must timely bring the issue to the attention of the trial court, thus providing the court an opportunity to rule on

the issue's merits. Issues not raised in the trial court in timely fashion are deemed waived, precluding [the appellate court from considering their merit on appeal.] Second, the issue must be specifically raised such that the issue is sufficiently raised to a level of consciousness before the trial court. Third, the party must introduce to the trial court supporting evidence or relevant legal authority to support its arguments.

Hart v. Salt Lake County, 945 P.2d 125, 129-30 (Utah Ct. App. 1997)(internal citations and quotations omitted)(emphasis added). In the present case Appellant does not satisfy any of these requirements.

The issues of retroactive application of a statute and of the contract's clause claims were simply never raised before the trial court. Plaintiff's brief expressly claims that both issues II and III were preserved in the trial court record at pages 297, 1030 and 1427-28.<sup>8</sup> Plaintiff provides the selfsame citations for both issues. Page 297 of the record corresponds to page 7 of the Plaintiff's Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. At no point on that page or elsewhere in that pleading is there any mention of a claim of retroactive application of a statute or the contracts clause. Indeed, it would have been most surprising to present such an argument in Plaintiff's Memorandum in Support of her Motion for Summary Judgment since both the retroactivity argument and the contract's clause arguments are rejoinders to the Defendants' argument that the Plaintiff's contract is illegal and void. Such matters would not be found in Plaintiff's Summary Judgment memo-in-chief but only in a reply memo.

Plaintiff's citation to the record at page 1030 is similarly misplaced. Page 1030 corresponds to page 22 of Plaintiff's Reply to Defendants' memorandum in opposition to summary judgment. Again, no mention of the issue of retroactivity or the contracts clause is

---

8. For the court's convenience, these pages of the record are reproduced in the Addendum.

mentioned on the cited page, nor anywhere else in that document. Pages 1427-28 correspond to pages 22 and 23 of the Plaintiff's Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment and to Dismiss. The paragraph which spans these two pages is the only response Plaintiff makes **in any pleadings** to Defendants' argument that Plaintiff's contract is illegal. However, Plaintiff cites neither case nor statute nor does she refer to retroactivity and does not suggest that the state or federal contracts clause in any way precludes or supplants the assertions made by the Plaintiff. Plaintiff's citations to the record, far from demonstrating that these issues have been preserved for appeal, demonstrate that there has been no preservation of the issues of retroactivity or the contract clause for review.<sup>9</sup> See Rocky Mountain Thrift Stores Inc. v. Salt Lake City Corp., 887 P.2d 848, 850 (Utah 1994)(holding fact

---

9. Footnote 1 of the Plaintiff's brief provides "[a] transcript of the May 18, 1998 oral arguments before the Honorable Howard H. Maetani, from which the order being appealed resulted, is not a part of the appellate record because the District Court personnel cannot locate the video tape from that date." Plaintiff/Appellant may attempt to argue that somehow these issues were raised during oral argument, and that she is now somehow prejudiced because she cannot demonstrate that fact due to the loss of the record. While Defendant does not agree that these issues were presented to the court during oral argument, Defendants observe that the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure provide a mechanism for addressing such claims. Utah R. App. P. 11(g) provides that "[the appellant may prepare a statement of the evidence or proceedings from the best available means, including recollection. The statement shall be served on the Appellee, who may serve objections or propose amendments within ten days after service. The statement and any objections or proposed amendments shall be submitted to the trial court for settlement and approval and, as settled and approved, shall be included by the Clerk of the trial court and record on appeal." Plaintiff/Appellant has not availed herself of this procedure. She is thus precluded from arguing before this court that there is any deficiency in the record.

Moreover, even if Plaintiff had presented these issues to the trial court during oral argument, the Utah Court of Appeals has held that an argument made only during oral argument on a motion for summary judgment was not sufficiently preserved to warrant appellate review. Shire Dev. v. Frontier Investments, 799 P.2d 221, 224 (Utah Ct. App. 1990).

issues cannot be raised for first time on appeal). Nowhere in the pleadings is the word “retroactive” used; no where are any constitutional claims analyzed.

Plaintiff’s appeal is her first mention of retroactivity and contracts clause. Below, Plaintiff did not raise either issue in any specific fashion. Neither issue was brought to the trial court’s consciousness. The Court’s Memorandum Decision does not even mention either issue. Finally, neither factual nor legal authority were presented in any form to the trial court. None of the elements of Hart are met. Hart, 945 P.2d at 129-130. See also, Lane v. Messer, 731 P.2d 488, 491 (Utah 1986)(holding issues not raised in pleadings and not addressed by trial court will not be considered on appeal).

Not only has Plaintiff failed to preserve issues II and III for review by this court, she has attempted to mislead this court by giving entirely fanciful citations to the record. Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(5)(A) specifically provides that a brief must contain a citation to the record showing the place where particular issues were preserved for appeal. “[T]o permit meaningful appellate review, briefs must comply with the briefing requirements sufficiently to enable us to understand what particular errors were allegedly made, where in the record these errors can be found, and why, under applicable authorities, those errors are material ones necessitating reversal or other relief.” Burns v. Summerhayes, 927 P.2d 197, 199 (Utah Ct. App. 1996).

Recently, on two separate occasions this court has censured an attorney who misstated the record on appeal. Lieber v. ITT Hartford Ins. Center, Inc., 2000 WL 1218479, \*5-\*8 & nn.9, 10, & 14 (Utah August 29, 2000); Boice v. Marble, 1999 WL 561528, \*4 n.5 (Utah August 3, 1999). Even more than counsel’s misstatements in Lieber and Boice, Plaintiff’s references to the record mislead the court. Nowhere in the record, much less in the citations provided by the

Plaintiff are the issues of retroactivity or the contract clause ever raised. Plaintiff's argument that somehow the record citations contain these issues is unfair and prejudicial to Defendants and to the Court.

### **III. The Trial Court Correctly Concluded that Plaintiff's Contract Was Illegal.**

The trial court properly concluded that the contract Plaintiff sought to enforce was illegal under state and federal law. For the first time on appeal, Plaintiff argues that 1) the court erred in retroactively applying the Utah Pyramid Scheme Act to the 1976 agreement, 2) that the court's reasoning impairs Plaintiff's contract rights contrary to the U.S. and Utah Constitutions, and 3) that court erroneously concluded that Plaintiff's contract was illegal. These arguments will be addressed in turn.

#### **A. Plaintiff Cannot Demonstrate Any Decision Which Is In Violation of the State or Federal Contracts Clause**

Plaintiff claims, in her brief, that the trial court's conclusion that Plaintiff's contract is void under the contracts clause of both the Utah and United States Constitution.<sup>10</sup> Plaintiff failed to provide any analysis or even raise this issue before the trial court and thus we do not have the benefit of developed briefing and the trial court's view of the issue. Plaintiff's briefing before this court is similarly deficient. The Plaintiff simply cites to a single Utah case, George v. Oren Ltd. & Assoc., 672 P.2d 732 (Utah 1983), for the proposition that even if the trial court were to

---

10. Plaintiff fails to show or argue any distinction between the federal and state contracts clauses. Accordingly, the court should assume that the issues are identical. Brunner v. Utah State Tax Comm'n, 945 P.2d 687, 689 n.3 (Utah 1997)(holding that failure to separately analyze state and federal constitutional claims results in analysis of federal claims only), citing, State v. Seale, 853 P.2d 862, 873 n.6 (Utah), cert. denied, 510 U.S. 865 (1993).



find that Utah's Antipyrarnid Scheme Act prohibited Plaintiff's contract, it could not be applied in this case because of the contract's clause. This reading is puerile.

Quoting George, the Plaintiff recites:

It is well settled that in the exercise of its police power, a state can enact regulations or laws reasonably necessary to secure the health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare of the community regardless of whether such laws or regulations affect contracts incidentally, directly, or indirectly.

George, 672 P.2d at 737. The Plaintiff then simply concludes that "[e]ven if Utah Code Ann. § 76-6a-1 et seq. is a proper exercise by the State of its police power ... the trial court may not impair Mrs. Peterson's contract rights that were in existence immediately prior to [the][sic] enactment of Utah Code Ann. § 76-6a-2(4).<sup>11</sup>

As presented to the trial court, the law regarding multi-level marketing is a complex interaction of both state and federal law and has evolved over the course of many years. There is certainly no dispute that states can regulate multilevel marketing organizations even to the point of retroactively terminating contracts. See, Koscot Interplanetary, Inc. v. Draney, 530 P.2d 108, 113 (Nev. 1974)("Although [multilevel distributorship] contracts previously entered into may be effected thereby, the constitutional interdiction against the impairment of the obligation of contract does not prevent a state in the reasonable exercise of its police power from enacting laws intended to benefit the public.").

Moreover, as the trial court found, multi-level marketing law requires a distinct and tangible nexus between one's receipt of income and one's efforts in a multi-level marketing

---

11. This court has also noted that "[t]he right of the Legislature to act under the police power of the state is a part of the existing law at the time of the execution of every contract, and as such becomes in contemplation of law a part of that contract." George, 672 P.2d at 738, quoting Layton v. Pan Am. Petroleum Corp., 383 P.2d 624, 627 (Okla. 1963).

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